
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

February 20, 2019

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency 
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development  
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Derek Williams, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



 
 

-2- 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of December 17, 2018, approved as written. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B.  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND Development Plan REVIEW FOR FILE  
 NO. PDEV18-026: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-026) to construct 464 single-

family homes (138 4/6-Pack Courtyard Homes and 326 Conventional Single-Family 
Homes) within an age-qualified master planned gated community on 137.56 acres of land 
located south of Eucalyptus Avenue between Hamner Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue and 
north of Bellegrave Avenue, within Planning Area 5 (RD-5 4/6-Pack Courtyard), Planning 
Area 6 (RD-4/SFD Cottages), Planning Areas 7 thru 9 (RD-1 and RD-2/SFD 50’ and 55’ 
wide lots) districts of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this 
project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Esperanza Specific Plan (File 
No. PSP05-002), Environmental Impact Report (SCH#: 2002061047) certified by the City 
Council on February 6, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of 
project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP). (APNs: 0218-252-17, 0218-332-11, 0218-722-04, 0218-722-05, 0218-722-06 
and 0218-722-07) submitted by Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 

 
 1.   CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR 
       

2.   File No. PDEV18-026 (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 
 

Development Advisory Board 
 

Minutes 
 

December 17, 2018
 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Khoi Do, Chairman, Engineering Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Bradley Gates, Economic Development Agency  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Rudy Zeledon, Planning Department  
Christine Booker, Police Department  
 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Doug Sorel, Police Department 
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development 
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 
Luis Batres, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Henry Noh, Planning Department 
Miguel Sotomayor, Engineering Department 
Alexis Vaughn, Planning Department 
Derrick Womble, Development Administration 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No one responded from the audience. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the November 19, 2018, meeting of    
        the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Shear;  and  approved    
        unanimously by those present (7-0).  
         

 

Item A - 1 of 3



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes –December 17, 2018 
Page 2 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP EXTENSION REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PMTT16-013 (TM 20050): A one-year Time Extension of the expiration date for the
approval of File No. PMTT16-013, a Tentative Tract Map (TM 20050) to subdivide 3.47 acres of land
for condominium purposes, located on the west side of Euclid Avenue, between Francis Avenue and
Cedar Street, at 1910 South Euclid Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential - 11.1
to 18.0 DUs/acre) and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay zoning districts. Staff has determined that the
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15304 (Class 4, Minor Alterations to Land) of the CEQA Guidelines. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT),
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land
Use Compatibility Plan (APNs: 1050-381-04, 1050-381-05, 1050-381-06, 1050-381-07, 1050-381-08
and 1050-381-09); submitted by 1902 Euclid Property LLC. Planning Commission action is
required.

Representative Simon Hibbert was present and spoke on behalf of the owner stating that he wanted 
the extension so they would be market-ready for the project. There were no questions from the 
board. 

Motion recommending approval of File No. PMTT16-013 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. De Sousa; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT   PLAN   AND    CONDITIONAL   USE
PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PDEV17-034 & PCUP17-026: A Development Plan (File No.
PDEV17-034) to construct a phased commercial development on 2.6 acres of land, composed of a
4,662 square foot commercial car wash (Phase 1) and two multi-tenant retail buildings composed of
9,500 square feet (Phase 2), in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP17-026) to
establish the car wash use, for property located along the northwest corner of Holt Boulevard and Grove
Avenue, within the East Holt Mixed-Use (MU-2) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332
(Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP).
(APNs: 1048-472-16, 1048-472-17, 1048-472-18, 1048-472-19, 1048-472-20, 1048-472-21)
submitted by Elba Inc., Planning Commission action is required.

Owner Joseph Bashoura was present and had no questions for the board.  Mr. Gates asked Mr. 
Bashoura if he knew what the timeline was for the two phases they would be working in.  Mr. 
Bashoura informed Mr. Gates the first phase would be immediate, but the second phase would 
depend on the market.  He said they would be moving forward with the second phase as soon as 
they have tenants, as they did not want the building to sit vacant.  There were no further questions. 

Motion recommending approval of File Nos. PCUP17-026 & PDEV17-034 subject to conditions 
to the Planning Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. Zeledon; and approved 
unanimously by those present (7-0). 

Item A - 2 of 3



Item A - 3 of 3



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
February 20, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV18-026 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct 464 single-family homes (138 4/6-Pack 
Courtyard Homes and 326 Conventional Single-Family Homes) within an age-qualified master planned 
gated community on 137.56 acres of land located south of Eucalyptus Avenue, between Hamner Avenue 
and Mill Creek Avenue, and north of Bellegrave Avenue, within Planning Area 5 (RD-5 4/6-Pack Courtyard), 
Planning Area 6 (RD-4/SFD Cottages), and Planning Areas 7 thru 9 (RD-1 and RD-2/SFD 50- and 55-foot 
wide lots) of the Esperanza Specific Plan. (APNs: 0218-252-17, 0218-332-11, 0218-722-04, 0218-722-05, 
0218-722-06, and 0218-722-07) submitted by Lennar Homes of California, Inc. Planning Commission 
action is required. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV18-026, as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 137.56 acres of land located south of 
Eucalyptus Avenue, between Hamner Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue, and north of Bellegrave Avenue, 
and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning 
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Rough Graded Low Density 
Residential 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

PA 5-9 (RD-5 4/6-Pack 
Courtyard, RD-1 and 2/ 
SFD 50’ and 55’ Wide 
Lots and RD-4/SFD 

Cottages) 

North Vacant Prev. Ag/Dairy 
Uses 

Low Density 
Residential and Public 

School 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

PA 4, PA 10 and PA 
11 (RD-6/ 6/8-Pack 

Courtyard, RD-3/SFD 
2-Pack and School)  

South City of Eastvale N/A N/A N/A 

East City of Eastvale N/A N/A N/A 

West Vacant Prev. Ag/Dairy 
Uses 

Low Density 
Residential 

Specific Plan/ 
Agriculture (SP/AG) N/A 

 
(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting the approval of a Development Plan to 

construct 464 single-family homes (138 4/6-Pack Cluster Homes and 326 Conventional Single-Family 
Homes) within an age-qualified master planned gated community on 137.56 acres of land located south of 
Eucalyptus Avenue, between Hamner Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue, and north of Bellegrave Avenue, 

Item B - 1 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 2 

within Planning Area 5 (RD-5 4/6-Pack 
Courtyard), Planning Area 6 (RD-4/SFD 
Cottages), and Planning Areas 7 thru 9 
(RD-1 and RD-2/SFD 50- and 55-foot 
wide lots) of the Esperanza Specific 
Plan. 
 
Background — The Esperanza Specific 
Plan and Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) were approved by the City Council 
on February 6, 2007. The Esperanza 
Specific Plan established the land use 
designations, development standards, 
and design guidelines for 223 acres of 
land, which includes the potential 
development of 1,410 dwelling units 
(Figure 2: The Esperanza Specific Plan 
Land Use Map).  Subsequent 
discretionary actions by the City include 
the following: 
 

 On February 27, 2007, the 
Planning Commission approved 
Tentative Tract Maps 17935 
and 17936 (File Nos. PMTT06-
013 and PMTT06-014) to 
subdivide 27.96 acres of land 
into 154 numbered residential lots and 11 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood 
edges and common open space purposes. The proposed parcels range in size from 2,640 square 
feet to 11,959 square feet.  The average lot size is 3,819 square feet.   

 
 On March 27, 2007, the Planning Commission approved Tentative Tract Maps 17932 and 17933 

(File Nos. PMTT06-004 and PMTT06-005) to subdivide 41.06 acres of land into 189 numbered 
residential lots and 4 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common 
open space purposes. The proposed parcels range in size from 4,050 square feet to 9,803 square 
feet.  The average lot size is 6,004 square feet.   

 
 On June 24, 2014, the Planning Commission approved Tentative Tract Map 18878 (File No. 

PMTT13-006) to subdivide 18.69 acres of land into 135 numbered residential lots and 27 lettered 
lots for streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common open space purposes. The lots range 
in size from 3,108 square feet to 9,081 square feet, with an average lot size of 3,955 square feet. 

 
 On September 17, 2018, the Development Advisory Board approved a Development Plan (File No. 

PDEV18-015) to construct an 8,869-square foot clubhouse/recreation center on 2.29 acres of land. 
The clubhouse/recreation center will include a fitness and movement studio, two clubrooms, two 
gathering areas, men’s and women’s locker and shower rooms, a veranda, kitchen and buffet area, 
bocce ball courts, pickle ball courts and a pool and spa. 

 
Site Design/Building Layout — The project proposes the development of 464 single-family homes (138 4/6-
Pack Cluster Homes and 326 Conventional Single-Family Homes) within an age-qualified master planned 
gated community (see Exhibit B – Site Plan, attached).  
 
The 4/6-Pack Cluster (138 DUs) includes three floor plans with three architectural styles per plan. The three 
floor plans include the following: 
 

Item B - 2 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 3 

• Plan 1:  1,418 square feet, 2 bedrooms, 
great room, covered patio and 2 baths. 

• Plan 2:  1,517 square feet, 2 bedrooms, 
great room, covered patio and 2 baths. 

• Plan 3:  1,558 square feet, 2 bedrooms, 
great room, covered patio and 2 baths 
(option ½ bath). 

 
The 50-foot wide single-family conventional 
homes (215 DU) includes three floor plans with 
three architectural styles per plan. The three 
floor plans include the following: 

 
• Plan 1:  1,381 square feet, 2 bedroom, 

covered patio and 2 baths. 
• Plan 2:  1,552 square feet, 2 bedrooms, 

great room, covered patio and 2 baths. 
• Plan 3:  1,558 square feet, 2 bedrooms, 

great room, covered patio and 2 baths. 
 
The 55-foot wide single-family conventional 
homes (111 DU) includes three floor plans with 
three architectural styles per plan. The three 
floor plans include the following: 

 
• Plan 1:  1,821 square feet, 2 bedrooms 

(option 3rd bedroom), great room, den, 
covered patio and 2.5 baths. 

• Plan 2:  1,846 square feet, 2 bedrooms (option 3rd bedroom), den, covered patio and 2.5 baths. 
• Plan 3:  2,135 square feet, 2 bedrooms (option 3rd bedroom), great room, den, covered patio and 

2.5 baths. 
 
The proposed 4/6-Pack Cluster incorporates 
various design features, such as single-story 
massing, varied entries, great room and 
covered patios. The Cluster product is 
characterized by a decorative paved private 
lane that provides both garage and front entry 
access to each unit. Each unit will be provided 
a two-car garage and the two rear units will 
be provided a two-car driveway.   
 
Plan 1 is oriented toward the public street 
(architecture forward), with the front entry and 
walkway fronting the street and garage 
access provided from the private lane. Plan 2 
(center units) and Plan 3 (rear units) are 
marginally visible from the public street and 
both floor plans front onto the private lane. 
Plans 2 and 3 will provide front entry and 
garage access from the private lane (see 
Figures 3A and 3B: 4/6-Pack Cluster Site 
Plan).   
 

 
 

Figure 3A: Conceptual 6-Pack Cluster Site Plan 

 
 

Figure 3B: Conceptual 4-Pack Cluster Site Plan 

Item B - 3 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 4 

The proposed single-family conventional dwellings will be oriented toward the street (architectural forward), 
with front entries and walks facing the street. Garage access will be taken from the public street. (see Figure 
4: Conceptual 50-Foot Wide Lot Site Plan and Figure 5: Conceptual 55-Foot Wide Lot Site Plan).   
 
All plans incorporate various design features such as horizontal and vertical building articulation, varied 
entry designs, front porches, covered patios and a great room. In addition, each home will have a two-car 
garage and two-car driveway. The homes feature mid recessed garages, which locates the garage a 
minimum of 6 to 8 feet behind the front elevation/living space. To minimize visual impacts of garages, 
techniques such as the use of horizontal and vertical massing of the front porches and entries and garage 
door header trim and details above garages will be incorporated on the various elevations.   
 

 
 

 
Architecture — The entire master planned gated community has a Spanish/Tuscany themed architectural 
style that includes: Spanish Colonial, Monterey Ranch and Tuscany. The styles complement one another 
through the overall scale, massing, proportions and details. The proposed home designs are consistent 
with the design guidelines of the Esperanza Specific Plan. Each architectural style will include the following 
(see Exhibit C – Floor Plans and Elevations, attached): 

 
Figure 4: Conceptual 50—Foot Wide Lot Site Plan 

 

 
Figure 5: Conceptual 55—Foot Wide Lot Site Plan 

Item B - 4 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 5 

 
• Spanish Colonial: Varying gable and hipped roofs with “S” concrete roof tiles; exposed rafter tails; 

circular turret entry; stucco finish; smooth trowel arched or formal front entries; arched/recessed 
windows; decorative foam eaves; decorative recessed tile elements with wrought iron below gable 
ends; faux chimney with decorative finial; decorative wing walls; and decorative window framing. 

 
• Monterey Ranch: Varying gable, Dutch gable and hipped roofs with “S” concrete roof tiles, wooden 

outlookers, horizontal siding and corbels below gable ends, a combination of brick veneer and 
stucco exterior, covered front porches with simple wood post columns/decorative corbels/wood 
railing; decorative shutters and window framing.  

 
• Tuscany: Varying gable and hipped roofs with “S” concrete roof tiles; exposed rafter tails; smooth 

trowel arched entries; decorative foam eaves;, a combination of stone veneer and stucco exterior; 
recessed element with decorative wrought iron below gable ends; and decorative window framing. 

 
Site Access/Circulation — The project street frontage improvements along Eucalyptus Avenue, Hamner 
Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue will be constructed as a condition of Tract Maps 17749 and 18380 “A” and 
“B” Maps. The project site will construct two signalized gated accesses on Eucalyptus Avenue, a gated 
ingress/egress on Mill Creek Avenue, and a gated egress on Hamner Avenue and Bellegrave Avenue (see 
Exhibit D – Conceptual Entry Gate Renderings, attached).  The project is conditioned to construct enhanced 
pavement at the gated vehicular accesses into the project. The project will be required to complete street 
improvements along all project frontages. The Eucalyptus Avenue improvements will include curb-to-curb 
street improvements which includes a 12-foot wide parkway and a 23-foot wide neighborhood edge. The 
Hamner Avenue improvements will include a last lane street improvement, a 20-foot wide parkway and a 
25-foot wide neighborhood edge. The Bellegrave Avenue improvements will include a last lane street 
improvement, a 12-foot wide parkway and a 23-foot wide neighborhood edge. The Mill Creek Avenue 
improvements will include a half-width and an additional lane street improvement, a 12-foot wide parkway 
and a 39-foot wide neighborhood edge. Additionally, the applicant is required to construct the interior tract 
streets and private lanes that will provide access to the future residents. 

 
Parking — The proposed 4/6-pack Cluster single-family homes will each provide an enclosed two-car 
garage, which is consistent with the requirements of the Esperanza Specific Plan and Development Code. 
In addition, the two rear units will have a standard two-car driveway and 71 on-street parking spaces are 
provided in the vicinity of the 4/6-Pack Cluster single-family homes. As demonstrated within Table 1, below, 
the project is required to provide a total of 276 parking spaces that are within an enclosed garage. The 
project is providing a total of 457 parking spaces (garage, driveway and on-street parking).  Based on the 
Specific Plan’s minimum parking requirements for the 4/6-Pack Cluster product, the development will be 
over parked by 181 parking spaces and will provide 3.31 spaces per unit, which should be more than 
adequate to accommodate both resident and visitor parking needs. 
 

 
The total parking required for all products (4/6-Pack Cluster and the single-family conventional homes) is 
928 parking spaces.  The project is providing a total of 2,077 parking spaces (garage, driveway and on-
street parking). Based on the Specific Plan’s minimum parking requirements, the overall development will 

 
Summary of Parking Analysis  

Product  Number 
of Units  

Required 
2-Car 

Garage 
Spaces  

2-Car 
Driveway 
Spaces  

On-Street 
Parking   

Total  
Provided 

+/- 
Parking   

SF  
4/6-Pack Cluster 

138 276 110 71 457 +181 

     3.31 spaces per unit 

Item B - 5 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 6 

be over-parked by 1,149 parking spaces and will provide 4.48 spaces per unit, which should be more than 
adequate to accommodate both resident and visitor parking needs. 
 
Landscaping/Open Space — The approved related Tentative Tract Maps (File No. PMTT06-004/TT 17932, 
PMTT06-005/TT 17933, PMTT06-013/TT 17935, PMTT06-014/TT 17936, and PMTT13-006/TT 18878) 
and Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-015) will facilitate the construction of sidewalks, parkways, and 
open space areas within the project site. TOP Policy Plan (Policy PR1-1) requires new developments to 
provide a minimum of 2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents. The proposed project is required to 
provide 3.53 acres of park to meet the minimum Policy Plan private park requirement. To satisfy the park 
requirement, the applicant is constructing an 8,869-square foot clubhouse/recreation center on 2.29 acres 
of land. The clubhouse/recreation center will include a fitness and movement studio, two clubrooms, two 
gathering areas, men’s and women’s locker and shower rooms, a veranda, kitchen and buffet area, bocce 
ball courts, pickle ball courts, and a pool and spa, and is located within the northeastern portion of the tract 
(see Exhibit E – Clubhouse/Recreation Center Renderings, attached). Additionally, two pocket parks 
located within the southeastern and northwestern portions of the community will be constructed.  
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002), for which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH#: 
2002061047) was certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007, and this Application introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

Item B - 6 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 7 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous certified 
Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the previous certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) and 
supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002), for which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH#: 
2002061047) was certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007. 
 

(2) The previous certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) contains a 
complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) was completed 
in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA 
Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) reflects the 
independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047), and all 
mitigation measures previously adopted with the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 
2002061047), are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 
2002061047) is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH#: 2002061047) that will require major revisions to the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 
2002061047) due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) was prepared, that will require major revisions 
to the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; 
and. 

 

Item B - 7 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 8 

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the certified Esperanza Specific 
Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the certified 
Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047); or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047); or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the certified Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH#: 2002061047) would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the 
maximum number of dwelling units (500) and density (5.36 DU/AC) specified within the Esperanza Specific 
Plan.  Per the Available Land Inventory, the Esperanza Specific Plan is required to provide 1,410 dwelling 
units with an overall density of 5-21 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Low Density Residential 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Esperanza Specific Plan. The development 

Item B - 8 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 9 

standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The Development Plan has been required to comply 
with all provisions of the Esperanza Specific Plan. Future neighborhoods within the Esperanza Specific 
Plan and surrounding area will provide for diverse housing and highly amenitized neighborhoods that will 
be compatible in design, scale and massing to the proposed development; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the Esperanza 
Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (single-family residential), 
as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking 
and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Esperanza Specific Plan are maintained; 
[ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in 
any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; 
and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan 
components of The Ontario Plan, and the Esperanza Specific Plan. Additionally, the environmental impacts 
of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Esperanza Specific Plan Environmental 
Impact Report (SCH#2002061047). This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Esperanza Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the 
particular land use being proposed (single-family residential homes). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Esperanza Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 

Item B - 9 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 10 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of February 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 10 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 
 

 Page 11 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Item B - 11 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

 
 

Item B - 12 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 1 
 

 

Item B - 13 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 1 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

  

Item B - 14 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 15 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 1 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 15 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 16 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 1 TUSCANY 
 

  

Item B - 16 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 17 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 2 
 

 
  

Item B - 17 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 18 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 2 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 18 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 19 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 2 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 19 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 20 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 2 TUSCANY 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 20 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 21 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 3 
 

 
 

Item B - 21 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 22 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 3 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 22 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 23 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 3 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 23 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 24 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 4/6 PACK-CLUSTER: PLAN 3 TUSCANY 
 

 

Item B - 24 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 25 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 1 
 

 
 
  

Item B - 25 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 26 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 1 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

Item B - 26 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 27 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 1 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
  

Item B - 27 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 28 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 1 TUSCANY 
 

Item B - 28 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 29 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 2 
 

 
  

Item B - 29 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 30 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 2 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

 
 

Item B - 30 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 31 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 2 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
  

Item B - 31 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 32 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL: PLAN 2 TUSCANY 
 

Item B - 32 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 33 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 
 

 
  

Item B - 33 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 34 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

Item B - 34 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 35 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
  

Item B - 35 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 36 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 50’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 TUSCANY 
 

 
 

Item B - 36 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 37 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 1 
 

 

Item B - 37 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 38 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 1 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

 
  

Item B - 38 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 39 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 1 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

Item B - 39 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 40 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 1 TUSCANY 
 

 
  

Item B - 40 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 41 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 2 
 

 
  

Item B - 41 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 42 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 2 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

Item B - 42 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 43 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 2 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
  

Item B - 43 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 44 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 2 TUSCANY 
 

Item B - 44 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 45 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 
 

 

Item B - 45 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 46 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 SPANISH COLONIAL 
 

 
 

Item B - 46 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 47 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 MONTEREY RANCH 
 

 
 

  

Item B - 47 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 48 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS – 55’-WIDE LOT CONVENTIONAL PLAN 3 TUSCANY 
 

 
 

  

Item B - 48 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 49 

Exhibit D — CONCEPTUAL ENTRY GATE RENDERINGS  
 

  

Item B - 49 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 50 

 
Exhibit D—CLUBHOUSE/RECREATION CENTER SITE PLAN 

 

  

Item B - 50 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 51 

Exhibit D—CLUBHOUSE/RECREATION CENTER RENDERINGS 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Item B - 51 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 

Page 52 

Exhibit D—CLUBHOUSE/RECREATION CENTER RENDERING 
 

Item B - 52 of 78



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-026 
February 20, 2019 
 
 

 Page 53 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 53 of 78



Item B - 54 of 78



Item B - 55 of 78



Item B - 56 of 78



Item B - 57 of 78



Item B - 58 of 78



Item B - 59 of 78



Item B - 60 of 78



Item B - 61 of 78



Item B - 62 of 78



Item B - 63 of 78



Item B - 64 of 78



Item B - 65 of 78



Item B - 66 of 78



Item B - 67 of 78



Item B - 68 of 78



Item B - 69 of 78



Item B - 70 of 78



Item B - 71 of 78



Item B - 72 of 78



Item B - 73 of 78



Item B - 74 of 78



Item B - 75 of 78



Item B - 76 of 78



Item B - 77 of 78



Item B - 78 of 78


	AGENDA
	February 20, 2019
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20190220_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS




